

**Nambucca Valley Council** 

# Planning Proposal Nambucca Local Environmental Plan Amendment No. 31

# RECLASSIFICATION AND REZONING OF LOT 91 DP 239693 – BANKSIA CRESCENT, SCOTTS HEAD

Prepared by: Development & Environment Section Nambucca Valley Council

Dated: May 2022

File:SF3197

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

PRELIMINARY	1
PART 1 OBJECTIVES AND INTENDED OUTCOMES	1
PART 2 EXPLANATION OF PROVISIONS	1
PART 3 JUSTIFICATION OF STRATEGIC AND SITE-SPECIFIC MERIT	1
SECTION A – NEED FOR THE PLANNING PROPOSAL	
SECTION C – ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC IMPACT	
$\label{eq:section} \begin{array}{l} D-Infrastructure (Local, State and Commonwealth) \\ \text{Section} \ E-State and Commonwealth Interests. \\ \end{array}$	
PART 4 MAPS	
PART 5 COMMUNITY CONSULTATION	13
PART 6 PROJECT TIMELINE	
ATTACHMENT 1 – AERIAL PHOTO OF THE LAND	1

## **Preliminary**

This planning proposal has been drafted in accordance with Section 3.33 of the *Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979*, and 'Local Environmental Plan Making Guideline' (DoP, 2021) for amendment to the Nambucca Local Environmental Plan 2010 (LEP). A gateway determination under Section 3.34 of the Act is requested.

### Part 1 Objectives and Intended outcomes

The objectives and intended outcomes of this planning proposal are to reclassify Lot 91 DP 239693 – Banksia Crescent, Scotts Head from community land to operational land and to rezone it from RE1 Public Recreation to R1 General Residential. The intention of this is to facilitate the establishment of a public road reserve within the lot which can provide legal access to Lot 2 DP 417248 - 5 Banksia Crescent, Scotts Head.

## Part 2 Explanation of Provisions

The proposed outcomes will be achieved by:

- 1. Amending Part 1 of Schedule 4 of the LEP by listing Lot 91 DP 239693 Banksia Crescent, Scotts Head (Council owned lot) as operational land.
- Amending the LEP land zoning map for Lot 91 DP 239693 Banksia Crescent, Scotts Head to R1 General Residential.

## Part 3 Justification of strategic and site-specific merit

### Section A – Need for the Planning Proposal

1 Is the planning proposal a result of an endorsed LSPS, strategic study or report?

No.

## 2 Is the planning proposal the best means of achieving the objectives or intended outcomes, or is there a better way?

The owners of 5 Banksia Crescent (Lot 2 DP417248) approached Council after identifying that they do not have legal access to their property. Their property contains an existing dwelling and has subdivision potential.

A 'right of way' existed over Lot 1 DP417248 to benefit 5 Banksia Crescent (Lot 2 DP417248) prior to Lot 1 being subdivided. See the below plan showing a 'right of way'.



In 2011 the subdivision of Lot 1 DP417248 into 2 lots was registered creating Lots 1 and 2 DP1160534. This plan was registered without a 'right of way' benefiting 5 Banksia Crescent. See the below plan showing no 'right of way'.



Currently it is not considered that the owners of 5 Banksia Crescent have "legal" access to their property and rely on access over the public reserve Lot 91 DP239693 (the land) as highlighted in blue below. This land is presently classified as community land – categorised as park.



The land was dedicated to Council as public reserve in 1970 by a developer as part of the release of the surrounding land. Council does not hold any records which provide a clear reasoning on why the land was dedicated as public reserve. However, given its shape/location it appears that its only real potential was for access through to the beach which is all that it has ever been used for.

It is not considered that further legal argument/investigation into the extinguishment of the right of carriageway is warrented due to the location of a dwelling over the former right of carriageway. The dwelling has been there for considerable time, with this dwelling and the existing dwelling at 5 Banksia Crescent being designed to achieve access from the existing public access within the adjoining reserve. It is this public access which Council is seeking to formalise as road reserve. This can be seen in the below aerial photo. Spending further resources on legal investigations is considered to be a waste of public money, especially when it would be extremely unlikely that Council or the owner of 5 Banksia Crescent would be successful in any court proceedings pursuing an order for the dwelling over the right of carriageway to be demolished. The common sense approach is to save public funds/resources and the financial/social impacts on the owners of 3 and 5 Banksia Crescent as part of any demolition order and proceed with the reclassification of the land to enable it to be transferred to public road reserve. This will be consistent with the lands existing use as a vehicular access to all adjoining properties.



Section 47F of the Local Government Act 1993 provides that community land can't be dedicated as a public road unless the road is necessary "to facilitate enjoyment of the area of community land on which the road is to be constructed", and the council has considered means of access other than a public road access to facilitate that enjoyment, and there is a plan of management applying <u>only</u> to the land which expressly authorises the public road. Council does not believe that these requirements can be satisfied to dedicate the community land as public road.

Options to allow legal access over the land include:

#### License agreement or lease of the community land

Council may enter a license or lease arrangement with the owners of 5 Banksia Crescent, however the license or lease arrangement is unlikely to suffice as legal access for the purposes of re-development or similar activities at 5 Banksia Crescent.

#### Creation of an 88K instrument

An 88K instrument may be used to provide access over the community land in accordance with the provisions of the *Conveyancing Act 1919*. However such a restriction requires the Supreme Court to determine the access and without investigating further is likely to be both a costly and lengthy process.

## Reclassification of the land from community to operational land and then dedicating the land as a public road

Reclassifying the land to operational land would enable the land to be dedicated as a public road. Pursuant to section 27 of the Local Government Act 1993, an amendment to the LEP is required to

reclassify the land from Community to Operational land. This is the purpose of this planning proposal which is considered to be the best means of achieving the objectives and intended outcomes as it will also facilitate additional vehicular access to other undeveloped residential land which adjoins the land.

It is considered appropriate to rezone the land to R1 General Residential as part of the reclassification process as the public road dedication is not compatible with the objectives of the current RE1 Public Recreation zoning. It is noted that the land is not currently used for public recreation as it is primarily used as informal access to surrounding properties. Rezoning the land to R1 General Residential will be consistent with the existing zoning of Banksia Crescent and other road reserves servicing residential zoned land within Scotts Head.

### Section B-Relationship to strategic planning framework.

## 3 Will the planning proposal give effect to the objectives and actions of the applicable regional or district plan or strategy (including any exhibited draft plans or strategies)?

It is not considered that the proposed amendments to the LEP will be contrary to the North Coast Regional Plan 2036.

4 Is the planning proposal consistent with a council LSPS that has been endorsed by the Planning Secretary or GSC, or another endorsed local strategy or strategic plan?

The proposed amendments will not be contrary to Councils Local Strategic Planning Statement, Community Strategic Plan or any other strategic plan.

5 Is the planning proposal consistent with any other applicable State and regional studies or strategies?

There are no other relevant state or regional studies or strategies relevant to the planning proposal.

## 6 Is the planning proposal consistent with applicable State Environmental Planning Policies (SEPP's)?

All State Environmental Planning Policies have been considered in the preparation of this planning proposal, however none are directly applicable.

#### 7 Is the planning proposal consistent with applicable Ministerial Directions (s9.1 directions)?

Directions under Section 9.1 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 that are applicable to this planning proposal are addressed as follows:

#### **Direction 1.1 - Implementation of Regional Plans**

The objective of this direction is to give legal effect to the vision, land use strategy, goals, directions and actions contained in Regional Plans.

This direction applies to a relevant planning authority when preparing a planning proposal for land to which a Regional Plan has been released by the Minister for Planning and Public Spaces.

Direction:

1. Planning proposals must be consistent with a Regional Plan released by the Minister for Planning.

Comment: This planning proposal is not contrary to any provision of the North Coast Regional Plan 2036.

#### **Direction 1.3 - Approval and Referral Requirements**

The objective of this direction is to ensure that LEP provisions encourage the efficient and appropriate assessment of development.

This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities when preparing a planning proposal.

#### Direction:

1. A planning proposal to which this direction applies must:

(a) minimise the inclusion of provisions that require the concurrence, consultation or referral of development applications to a Minister or public authority, and

(b) not contain provisions requiring concurrence, consultation or referral of a Minister or public authority unless the relevant planning authority has obtained the approval of:

- i. the appropriate Minister or public authority, and
- ii. the Planning Secretary (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Secretary), prior to undertaking community consultation in satisfaction of Schedule 1 to the EP&A Act, and

(c) not identify development as designated development unless the relevant planning authority:

i. can satisfy the Planning Secretary (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Secretary) that the class of development is likely to have a significant impact on the environment, and

ii. has obtained the approval of the Planning Secretary (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Secretary) prior to undertaking community consultation in satisfaction of Schedule 1 to the EP&A Act.

Comment: This planning proposal does not include provisions which are contrary to the above direction.

#### Direction 3.1 – Conservation Zones

The objective of this direction is to protect and conserve environmentally sensitive areas.

This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities when preparing a planning proposal.

Direction:

- 1. A planning proposal must include provisions that facilitate the protection and conservation of environmentally sensitive areas.
- 2. A planning proposal that applies to land within a conservation zone or land otherwise identified for environment conservation/protection purposes in a LEP must not reduce the conservation standards that apply to the land (including by modifying development standards that apply to the land). This requirement does not apply to a change to a development standard for minimum lot size for a dwelling in accordance with Direction 9.3 (2) of "Rural Lands".

*Comment:* This planning proposal does not impact any land within a conservation zone and will not result in any impacts on environmentally sensitive areas.

#### **Direction 3.2 – Heritage Conservation**

The objective of this direction is to conserve items, areas, objects and places of environmental heritage significance and indigenous heritage significance.

This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities when preparing a planning proposal.

Direction:

1. A planning proposal must contain provisions that facilitate the conservation of:

(a) items, places, buildings, works, relics, moveable objects or precincts of environmental heritage significance to an area, in relation to the historical, scientific, cultural, social, archaeological, architectural, natural or aesthetic value of the item, area, object or place, identified in a study of the environmental heritage of the area,

(b) Aboriginal objects or Aboriginal places that are protected under the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1974, and

(c) Aboriginal areas, Aboriginal objects, Aboriginal places or landscapes identified by an Aboriginal heritage survey prepared by or on behalf of an Aboriginal Land Council, Aboriginal body or public

authority and provided to the relevant planning authority, which identifies the area, object, place or landscape as being of heritage significance to Aboriginal culture and people.

*Comment:* This planning proposal will not impact the existing provision in the LEP which protects the conservation of the above.

#### **Direction 3.5 – Recreation Vehicle Areas**

The objective of this direction is to protect sensitive land or land with significant conservation values from adverse impacts from recreation vehicles.

This direction applies when Council prepares a planning proposal.

Direction:

- 1. The planning proposal must not enable land to be developed for the purpose of a recreation vehicle area (within the meaning of the *Recreation Vehicles Act 1983*):
  - (a) where the land is within an environmental protection zone,
  - (b) where the land comprises a beach or a dune adjacent to or adjoining a beach,
  - (c) where the land is not within an area or zone referred to in paragraphs (4)(a) or (4)(b) unless the relevant planning authority has taken into consideration:
    - (i) the provisions of the guidelines entitled Guidelines for Selection, Establishment and Maintenance of Recreation Vehicle Areas, Soil Conservation Service of New South Wales, September, 1985, and
    - (ii) the provisions of the guidelines entitled Recreation Vehicles Act, 1983, Guidelines for Selection, Design, and Operation of Recreation Vehicle Areas, State Pollution Control Commission, September 1985.

*Comment:* This planning proposal is not contrary to this direction as it does not enable land to be developed for the purpose of a recreation vehicle area.

#### Direction 4.2 – Coastal Management

The objective of this direction is to protect and manage coastal areas of NSW.

This direction applies when a planning proposal authority prepares a planning proposal that applies to land that is within the coastal zone, as defined under the Coastal Management Act 2016 - comprising the coastal wetlands and littoral rainforests area, coastal vulnerability area, coastal environment area and coastal use area - and as identified by chapter 3 of the State Environmental Planning Policy (Biodiversity and Conservation) 2021.

Direction:

- 1. A planning proposal must include provisions that give effect to and are consistent with:
  - (a) the objects of the Coastal Management Act 2016 and the objectives of the relevant coastal management areas;

(b) the NSW Coastal Management Manual and associated Toolkit;

(c) NSW Coastal Design Guidelines 2003; and

(d) any relevant Coastal Management Program that has been certified by the Minister, or any Coastal Zone Management Plan under the Coastal Protection Act 1979 that continues to have effect under clause 4 of Schedule 3 to the Coastal Management Act 2016, that applies to the land.

2. A planning proposal must not rezone land which would enable increased development or more intensive land-use on land:

(a) within a coastal vulnerability area identified by the State Environmental Planning Policy (Coastal Management) 2018; or

(b) that has been identified as land affected by a current or future coastal hazard in a local environmental plan or development control plan, or a study or assessment undertaken:

i. by or on behalf of the relevant planning authority and the planning proposal authority, or

ii. by or on behalf of a public authority and provided to the relevant planning authority and the planning proposal authority.

- 3. A planning proposal must not rezone land which would enable increased development or more intensive land-use on land within a coastal wetlands and littoral rainforests area identified by chapter 3 of the State Environmental Planning Policy (Biodiversity and Conservation) 2021.
- 4. A planning proposal for a local environmental plan may propose to amend the following maps, including increasing or decreasing the land within these maps, under the State Environmental Planning Policy (Coastal Management) 2018:
  - (a) Coastal wetlands and littoral rainforests area map;
  - (b) Coastal vulnerability area map;
  - (c) Coastal environment area map; and
  - (d) Coastal use area map.

Such a planning proposal must be supported by evidence in a relevant Coastal Management Program that has been certified by the Minister, or by a Coastal Zone Management Plan under the Coastal Protection Act 1979 that continues to have effect under clause 4 of Schedule 3 to the Coastal Management Act 2016.

*Comment:* This planning proposal is not contrary to the provisions of this direction as it is not located within any of the identified areas and is not contrary to the Coastal Management Act, management manual, design guidelines, or coastal management program.

#### **Direction 4.3 Planning for Bushfire Protection**

The objectives of this direction are to:

(a) protect life, property and the environment from bush fire hazards, by discouraging the establishment of incompatible land uses in bush fire prone areas, and(b) encourage sound management of bush fire prone areas.

This direction applies to all local government areas when a relevant planning authority prepares a planning proposal that will affect, or is in proximity to, land mapped as bushfire prone land.

Direction:

- 1. In the preparation of a planning proposal the relevant planning authority must consult with the Commissioner of the NSW Rural Fire Service following receipt of a gateway determination under section 3.34 of the Act, and prior to undertaking community consultation in satisfaction of clause 4, Schedule 1 to the EP&A Act, and take into account any comments so made.
- A planning proposal must:
  (a) have regard to Planning for Bushfire Protection 2019,
  (b) introduce controls that avoid placing inappropriate developments in hazardous areas, and
  (c) ensure that bushfire hazard reduction is not prohibited within the Asset Protection Zone (APZ).
  - 3. A planning proposal must, where development is proposed, comply with the following provisions, as appropriate:
    - (a) provide an Asset Protection Zone (APZ) incorporating at a minimum:

i. an Inner Protection Area bounded by a perimeter road or reserve which circumscribes the hazard side of the land intended for development and has a building line consistent with the incorporation of an APZ, within the property, and

ii. an Outer Protection Area managed for hazard reduction and located on the bushland side of the perimeter road,

(b) for infill development (that is development within an already subdivided area), where an appropriate APZ cannot be achieved, provide for an appropriate performance standard, in consultation with the NSW Rural Fire Service. If the provisions of the planning proposal permit Special Fire Protection Purposes (as defined under section 100B of the Rural Fires Act 1997), the APZ provisions must be complied with,

(c) contain provisions for two-way access roads which links to perimeter roads and/or to fire trail networks,

(d) contain provisions for adequate water supply for firefighting purposes,

- (e) minimise the perimeter of the area of land interfacing the hazard which may be developed,
- (f) introduce controls on the placement of combustible materials in the Inner Protection Area.

*Comment:* The planning proposal is not considered to be contrary to this direction as its purpose is to facilitate the dedication of the land as a public road which will enable improved access to properties to be achieved as part of future development which will be compliant with Planning for Bushfire Protection 2019.

#### **Direction 4.5 - Acid Sulfate Soils**

The objective of this direction is to avoid significant adverse environmental impacts from the use of land that has a probability of containing acid sulfate soils.

This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities that are responsible for land having a probability of containing acid sulfate soils when preparing a planning proposal that will apply to land having a probability of containing acid sulfate soils as shown on the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps held by the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment. Direction:

- 1. The relevant planning authority must consider the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Guidelines adopted by the Planning Secretary when preparing a planning proposal that applies to any land identified on the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps as having a probability of acid sulfate soils being present.
- When a relevant planning authority is preparing a planning proposal to introduce provisions to regulate works in acid sulfate soils, those provisions must be consistent with:

   (a) the Acid Sulfate Soils Model LEP in the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Guidelines adopted by the Planning Secretary, or
   (b) other such provisions provided by the Planning Secretary that are consistent with the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Guidelines.
- 3. A relevant planning authority must not prepare a planning proposal that proposes an intensification of land uses on land identified as having a probability of containing acid sulfate soils on the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps unless the relevant planning authority has considered an acid sulfate soils study assessing the appropriateness of the change of land use given the presence of acid sulfate soils. The relevant planning authority must provide a copy of any such study to the Planning Secretary prior to undertaking community consultation in satisfaction of clause 4 of Schedule 1 to the Act.
- 4. Where provisions referred to under 2(a) and 2(b) above of this direction have not been introduced and the relevant planning authority is preparing a planning proposal that proposes an intensification of land uses on land identified as having a probability of acid sulfate soils on the Acid Sulfate Soils Planning Maps, the planning proposal must contain provisions consistent with 2(a) and 2(b).

*Comment:* The land is mapped as potentially containing class 5 acid sulfate soils. The planning proposal is considered to be consistent with this direction because it does not include any changes to the existing provisions within clause 7.1 of the LEP which regulates works in acid sulfate soils or intensification of development on land which has the probability of containing acid sulfate soils that would be contrary to that clause.

#### **Direction 5.1 - Integrating Land Use and Transport**

The objective of this direction is to ensure that urban structures, building forms, land use locations, development designs, subdivision and street layouts achieve the following planning objectives:

(a) improving access to housing, jobs and services by walking, cycling and public transport, and

(b) increasing the choice of available transport and reducing dependence on cars, and

(c) reducing travel demand including the number of trips generated by development and the distances travelled, especially by car, and

(d) supporting the efficient and viable operation of public transport services, and

(e) providing for the efficient movement of freight.

This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities when preparing a planning proposal that will create, alter or remove a zone or a provision relating to urban land, including land zoned for residential, business, industrial, village or tourist purposes.

#### Direction:

 A planning proposal must locate zones for urban purposes and include provisions that give effect to and are consistent with the aims, objectives and principles of: (a) Improving Transport Choice – Guidelines for planning and development (DUAP 2001), and (b) The Right Place for Business and Services – Planning Policy (DUAP 2001).

*Comment:* This planning proposal is not considered to be contrary to this direction as the land is to be dedicated as public road which will facilitate access to existing lots.

#### Direction 5.2 - Reserving Land for Public Purposes

The objectives of this direction are to:

(a) facilitate the provision of public services and facilities by reserving land for public purposes, and(b) facilitate the removal of reservations of land for public purposes where the land is no longer required for acquisition.

This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities when preparing a planning proposal.

Direction:

- 1. A planning proposal must not create, alter or reduce existing zonings or reservations of land for public purposes without the approval of the relevant public authority and the Planning Secretary (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Secretary).
- 2. When a Minister or public authority requests a relevant planning authority to reserve land for a public purpose in a planning proposal and the land would be required to be acquired under Division 3 of Part 2 of the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991, the relevant planning authority must:

(a) reserve the land in accordance with the request, and

(b) include the land in a zone appropriate to its intended future use or a zone advised by the Planning Secretary (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Secretary), and (c) identify the relevant acquiring authority for the land.

3. When a Minister or public authority requests a relevant planning authority to include provisions in a planning proposal relating to the use of any land reserved for a public purpose before that land is acquired, the relevant planning authority must:

(a) include the requested provisions, or

(b) take such other action as advised by the Planning Secretary (or an officer of the Department nominated by the Secretary) with respect to the use of the land before it is acquired.

4. When a Minister or public authority requests a relevant planning authority to include provisions in a planning proposal to rezone and/or remove a reservation of any land that is reserved for public purposes because the land is no longer designated by that public authority for acquisition, the relevant planning authority must rezone and/or remove the relevant reservation in accordance with the request.

*Comment:* The land is currently public reserve and Council is requesting to remove this reservation as part of this planning proposal. As noted above, the land is used as access to adjoining land and not for public recreation.

#### Direction 6.1 – Residential Zones

The objectives of this direction are to:

- a encourage a variety and choice of housing types to provide for existing and future housing needs,
- b make efficient use of existing infrastructure and services and ensure that new housing has appropriate access to infrastructure and services, and
- c minimise the impact of residential development on the environment and resource lands.

This direction applies to all relevant planning authorities when preparing a planning proposal that will affect land within an existing or proposed residential zone (including the alteration of any existing residential zone boundary), or any other zone in which significant residential development is permitted or proposed to be permitted.

Direction:

A planning proposal must include provisions that encourage the provision of housing that will:

 (a) broaden the choice of building types and locations available in the housing market, and
 (b) make more efficient use of existing infrastructure and services, and
 (c) reduce the consumption of land for housing and associated urban development on the urban fringe, and

(d) be of good design.

2. A planning proposal must, in relation to land to which this direction applies:

(a) contain a requirement that residential development is not permitted until land is adequately serviced (or arrangements satisfactory to the council, or other appropriate authority, have been made to service it), and

(b) not contain provisions which will reduce the permissible residential density of land.

*Comment:* The planning proposal is not considered to be contrary to this direction as its intention is to enable the dedication of the land as a road reserve so that existing access arrangements over the land can be formalised.

#### Direction 6.2 Caravan Parks and Manufactured Home Estates

The objectives of this direction are to:

- (a) provide for a variety of housing types, and
- (b) provide opportunities for caravan parks and manufactured home estates.

This direction applies to Council when it prepares a planning proposal.

Direction:

1. In identifying suitable zones, locations and provisions for caravan parks in a planning proposal, the relevant planning authority must:

(a) retain provisions that permit development for the purposes of a caravan park to be carried out on land, and

(b) retain the zonings of existing caravan parks, or in the case of a new principal LEP zone the land in accordance with an appropriate zone under the Standard Instrument (Local Environmental Plans) Order 2006 that would facilitate the retention of the existing caravan park.

2. In identifying suitable zones, locations and provisions for manufactured home estates (MHEs) in a planning proposal, the relevant planning authority must:

(a) take into account the categories of land set out in Schedule 6 of State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing) as to where MHEs should not be located,

(b) take into account the principles listed in clause 9 Schedule 5 of State Environmental Planning Policy (Housing) (which relevant planning authorities are required to consider when assessing and determining the development and subdivision proposals), and

(c) include provisions that the subdivision of MHEs by long term lease of up to 20 years or under the Community Land Development Act 1989 be permissible with consent.

*Comment:* The planning proposal is not considered to be contrary to this direction as it does not alter existing provisions for caravan parks and does not include provisions for MHE.

### Section C – Environmental, social and economic impact

## 8 Is there any likelihood that critical habitat or threatened species, populations or ecological communities, or their habitats, will be adversely affected because of the proposal?

It is not considered that the proposal will have any significant effects on threatened species, populations, communities or their habitats as the proposal will not result in any physical impacts on the land the subject of the proposal aside from upgrades to existing disturbed areas already used as access roads.

## 9 Are there any other likely environmental effects as a result of the planning proposal and how are they proposed to be managed?

No as there will be no significant physical activity resulting from the planning proposal.

#### 10 Has the planning proposal adequately addressed any social and economic effects?

The planning proposal will result in legal access being provided to an adjoining dwelling which is not currently available. The social and economic impacts by this property not having legal access is significant.

### Section D – Infrastructure (Local, State and Commonwealth)

#### 11 Is there adequate public infrastructure for the planning proposal?

Additional public infrastructure is not considered necessary to support the proposed amendments.

### Section E – State and Commonwealth Interests

## 12 What are the views of state and federal public authorities and government agencies consulted in order to inform the Gateway determination?

Government authorities have not been formally involved in this planning proposal as it is yet to receive gateway approval. Given the intention of the proposal is to facilitate the transfer of the land to road reserve, that there is an existing road on the land, that no environmental impacts will be resulting from the proposal, and that the proposal will facilitate improved access during bushfire events should development occur which requires road upgrade; it is not considered that consultation with public authorities is warranted prior to gateway determination.

#### **Classification and reclassification of public land**

The proposed reclassification is assessed against the Local Environmental Plan Making Guideline and Attachment 1 of LEP Practice Note PN 16-001 as follows:

Required Consideration	Comment
Is the planning proposal the result of a strategic study or report?	No. It is to provide legal access of an existing road used by the public to access adjoining land.
Is the planning proposal consistent with the council's community plan, or other local strategic plan?	Yes, the proposal provides a positive social outcome which is consistent with the existing use of the land as a road.
The concurrence of the landowner must be obtained, where the land is not owned by the PPA	The land is owned by Council.
The effect of the reclassification, including loss of open space, any discharge of interests, and/ or removal of public reserve status	It is not considered that the proposal will result in the loss of any active public open space as it is currently used as a road to access adjoining land. The proposed change in classification will facilitate the lands transition to a road reserve. This will maintain the communities existing use of the land as an access way.
The strategic and site-specific merits of the reclassification and evidence to support this	As outlined above, the proposal will not alter the communities existing and historical use of the site as a public access way.
Does the planning proposal deliver a public benefit?	Yes. The proposal provides both legal access to private property as well as alternate access to other properties which are not accessible from primary access routes. The presence of this road will be of benefit during a bushfire event.
Have the implications for open space in the LGA in relation to current and future open space	The land is currently used as a road. It is not considered that it provides any public benefit as

pen space. nd is currently community land. It is nd to reclassify it as operational land to
e its transition to public road reserve.
d is a public reserve.
re no interests to be extinguished aside le lands public reserve status. See d title search. d was dedicated as public reserve in Given its location and configuration, its l purpose has only ever been to provide ivity for development to the south to the This is supported by the historic use of as a public access way. The transfer of d to road reserve will not alter this <i>l</i> intended use.
ed above.
ed above. It is not considered that the I will result in the loss of public open
ached title search.
d is currently used as a public access o surrounding properties. Adjoining s are lawful and have been there for rable time. The dwellings on 3 and 5 Crescent are designed to obtain from the land.
re no existing or proposed leases on the
y agreement is to transfer the land to eserve to facilitate legal access to g properties. The land will not be sold.
sting zoning is RE1 Public Recreation. Insfer of the land to road reserve and use of the land as a road is contrary to ectives of this zone. It is intended to the land R1 General Residential to be ent with surrounding lots and road s.
ill be no financial benefit as the land will old.
d will not be sold.
ole lot is proposed to be reclassified as nal.

whole lot; and			
Preliminary comments by a relevant government	As outlined earlier, it is not considered		
agency, including an agency that dedicated the	appropriate to consult with government		
land to council, if applicable.	agencies prior to gateway determination. The		
	land was not dedicated by an agency.		

### Part 4 Maps

It is proposed to amend the Land Zoning Map for Lot 91 DP 239693 – Banksia Crescent, Scotts Head from RE1 Public Recreation to R1 General Residential to be consistent with the adjoining residential land and road reserves.



## Part 5 Community Consultation

It is intended to undertake community consultation by way of an advertisement in the local newspaper and Councils website and notification to adjoining landowners advising of the planning proposal and the opportunity to make a submission. It is intended to advertise the planning proposal for 28 days. It is also intended to undertake a public hearing.

## Part 6 Project Timeline

May 2022 June/July 2022	Gateway determination issued by Department of Planning & Environment Public exhibition of planning proposal and consultation with government
	agencies
June/July 2022	Public Hearing
August 2022	Analysis of public submissions and agency responses
	Preparation of Council report
September 2022	Endorsed planning proposal submitted to Department of Planning and
	Environment for finalisation.

#### Attachment 1 – Aerial Photo of the Land





NEW SOUTH WALES LAND REGISTRY SERVICES - TITLE SEARCH

FOLIO: 91/239693

SEARCH DATE	TIME	EDITION NO	DATE
13/4/2022	12:09 PM	-	-

VOL 11425 FOL 137 IS THE CURRENT CERTIFICATE OF TITLE

LAND

#### LOT 91 IN DEPOSITED PLAN 239693 AT SCOTTS HEAD LOCAL GOVERNMENT AREA NAMEUCCA VALLEY PARISH OF WARRELL COUNTY OF RALEIGH TITLE DIAGRAM DP239693

FIRST SCHEDULE

THE COUNCIL OF THE SHIRE OF NAMBUCCA

SECOND SCHEDULE (3 NOTIFICATIONS)

-----

- 1 LAND EXCLUDES MINERALS AND IS SUBJECT TO RESERVATIONS AND CONDITIONS IN FAVOUR OF THE CROWN - SEE CROWN GRANT(S)
- 2 K200000P CAVEAT BY THE REGISTRAR GENERAL FORBIDDING REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENTS NOT AUTHORISED BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL GOV ACT, 1919, RELATING TO PUBLIC RESERVES
- 3 DP239693 RESTRICTION(S) ON THE USE OF LAND

NOTATIONS

-----

UNREGISTERED DEALINGS: NIL

\*\*\* END OF SEARCH \*\*\*

#### Planning

PRINTED ON 13/4/2022

Received: 13/04/2022 12:09:16

• Any entries preceded by an asteriak do not appear on the current edition of the Cartificate of Tide. Warning: the Information appearing under notations has not been formally recorded in the Registre: Enricit Tack an approved NSW Information Broker hereby cartifies that the information contained in this document has been provided electronically by the Registre: General in accounter, with Section 58(2) of the Real Poperty Act 1900.

Copyright @ Office of the Registrar-General 2022